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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

"Trevanion" is located on Trevanion Road, three miles northwest of Uniontown 
and four miles southeast of Taneytown, Maryland, along the Big Pipe Creek.

The house is a two and one-half story building with an asymmetrical central 
hall plan with a tower (see floor plan). Originally, there existed a five 
bay wide by two bay deep farmhouse with an ell wing. The main section is 
brick, laid in Flemish bond, with gable ends, inside end chimneys, a stone 
foundation and a shingle roof. The masonry is laid so that the brick forms 
diamond and X patterns.

The house was converted in 1855 to the "villa style" then popular in America 
incorporating a combination of Italianate and Gothic elements. The major 
architectural changes made during this renovation were the addition of a 
brick tower and an adjoining gable end projection. An enclosed verandah 
and an open porch were also added as well as a variety of ornamentation. 
In 1857, a three and one-half story wing was built on to the ell which also 
contains elements of the "villa style." The trim is painted yellow and 
brown for sharp contrast. Corbeled caps modernized the chimneys and marble 
sills were placed in the windows.

As an embellishment of the main entrance, the tower is situated in the 
center of the main facade. It is three stories with a flat hipped roof and 
a broad bracketed cornice. On the east side of the tower is the gable end 
addition and on the west side is the enclosed verandah. The main floor of 
the tower is arched. The second floor has a balcony on the front and on 
the east side are a window and door facing on the verandah roof. The 
balcony has double doors, a hood with undulating trim, and a railing sup­ 
ported by tracery ornamentation. The third floor of the tower has a trian­ 
gular pedimented window facing the front, a quatrefoil window to the east, 
and double, round-headed windows to the west.

The one-story roofed verandah has wood arches. Fronting it are double hung 
sash windows, six over six, which are part of the original section of the 
house. (All of the windows in the house are double hung sash six over six 
with shutters except for the bay and dormer windows, and the windows on 
the 1857 addition). The second floor above the verandah roof has identical 
windows. Both sets of windows have had bold flat projecting cornices added.

The gable end projection was built to extend the parlor and to harmonize 
the facade with the tower. The main floor has a rectangular bay window 
which supports a balcony on the second floor. The balcony has double doors 
and a hood similar to the one on the tower, but has a bannister railing 
instead of the tracery. There is a quatrefoil window in the gable end and 
a bold roof cornice with brackets. The roof is shingled and has a chimney 
on the east side of the ridgepole (see roof plan) .

The side (facing southeast) of the gable end and projection is flush with 
the gable end of the original section and has a single window on each

(SEE CONTINUATION SHEET NO.l)
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Built in 1817, "Trevanion" and its additions and alterations represent the 
changing trends in American architecture during the middle of the nineteenth 
century.

David Kephart owned the property and had the original house built. Con­ 
structed in a plain rural design of the Pennsylvania folk style, it was 
typical of many farm houses still in the area. In 1832, Kephart had the 
tract of land resurveyed and named it "Brick Mills" in consideration of 
the prosperity he enjoyed from his milling business along the Big Pipe 
Creek.

In 1855, William W. Dallas bought the farm and named it "Trevanion" a 
term meaning "the meeting of streams" in Wales dialect, and also a Dallas 
family name. Dallas' family contained several prominent lawyers and judges, 
including George M. Dallas who became vice president of the United States 
under James K. Polk (1845-49) . Dallas contributed significantly to the 
area around his new home by his knowledge of the latest farm machinery and 
techniques, as well as becoming an influential social and political person­ 
ality. During the Civil War, he deeded "Trevanion" to his wife and left 
to join the Confederate Army.

More important, however, is the fact that Dallas' renovation of the build­ 
ings at "Trevanion" created a unique feature in rural Carroll County. 
Utilizing contemporary architectural manuals and his experience of houses 
gained through his varied travels, Dallas and his brother-in-law, Joshua 
Shorb, designed a plan of architectural changes current to those being 
undertaken throughout the United States, particularly in the Hudson River 
Valley. Alterations made by Dallas are similar to the designs published 
by A. J. Downing in The Architecture of Country Houses (published by 
D. Appleton and Co., New York, 1850), especially in balcony details and 
other forms of ornamentation. The main plan also closely corresponds to 
several designs published in a .collection by Calvert Vaux, Villas and 
Cottages (Harper and Brothers, Publishers, New Yrok 1864), particularly 
designs #13, #15, #19, and #26. In 1857, a "Gothic-style" addition was 
built as a complement to the Italianate features of the house, and the out­ 
buildings were trimmed similarly. The house stands today in relatively 
the same condition as it did after Dallas' renovation, a symbol of the 
taste of a past time. It is especially conspicuous in agrarian Carroll 
County and it is significant that an "up-to-date" structure existed in a 
rural area otherwise dominated by cultural lag.

(SEE CONTINUATION SHEET NO. 3)
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Description - continued

floor corresponding to the four windows in the bays of the original section, 
two on the first floor and two on the second. In the gable is a quatrefoil 
window and the eaves above have a bracketed cornice.

The other gable end of the original building is identical except for an 
alteration to the window in the second bay on the main floor. A platform 
porch was built on this side of the house and extends from the front corner 
of the house to the midway point in the ell. Access to this porch is from 
the altered window which has wooden panels below it that swing open for a 
doorway. On the outside, these panels are covered with shutters to make 
this passage resemble the old window as much as possible in order to allow 
for continuity in the facade.

The rear facade of the original section up to the point of contact with 
the ell has two bays. These bays contain shuttered windows without the 
bold cornices on both the first and second floors. This side of the ell 
has a screened porch on the first floor running from the original section 
to approximately onehalf the length of the ell. On the second floor above 
this porch is a sun porch with three sections of large windows and wood 
ornamentation consisting of a plain bannister railing and lattice work 
arches above. On the roof is a single dormer. The rest of the ell is a 
section of four bays in two rows, those on the second floor contain win­ 
dows and on the first floor is a window and a door.

On the other side where the ell is flush with the main section, the facade 
is broken in two sections of four windows each, two windows on the main 
floor and two windows on the second floor. These windows are slightly 
smaller than those on the original section. The sections are separated by 
a wider section of brick wall than that existing between the windows in 
the section. Centered above each section is a dormer window (four over 
four) and a chimney is near the end of the ell.

To the rear of the ell, an addition was added in 1857. This addition is 
three and one-half stories high, two bays deep and three bays wide and has 
high peaked gables. It utilizes common bond masonry and has a central 
chimney. The west facade has a large central oriel window. The glass and 
wood window molding in this window, as in the other windows on this facade 
and the windows in the second and third floors of the other sides of the 
addition, forms diamond patterns. Above the oriel are two tall windows 
and a quatrefoil window is in the gable. Below the oriel is one window 
and a door which opens onto a small porch. The eaves of the high peaked

(SEE CONTINUATION SHEET NO.2)
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Description - continued

gable have barge board with pendants and there is a finial at the peak. 
The same design and barge board ornamentation exists on the other end of 
the addition, except that the second floor has two windows instead of the 
oriel and the main floor has rectangular paned window and a door that 
opens to ground level. The rear of the addition has three bays those on 
the main floor contain windows with rectangular panes; those on the second 
floor contain the tall diamond pattern paned windows; and above (and also 
existing on the opposite side of the building) are eyebrow windows also 
with the diamond pattern.

The door hardware, locks and keys, and shutter catches are original to 
the time of the renovation. The double parlor is well-lit and finely 
ornamented with marble mantels and elaborate, wood carved ornamentation 
between the sections of the parlor. The other interior spaces are marked 
by rural reticence in ornamentation.
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Statement of Significance - continued

Other inhabitants of "Trevanion" have been: Peter Kephart, who lived 
there prior to Dallas' purchase, and who is known for his experimentation 
in principles of refrigeration, later becoming successful in this work as 
well with hot air fireplace heaters and with concepts involving artificial 
ice (there is a large underground hole, presently covered, at "Trevanion" 
where Kephart carried out his refrigeration experiments); and Charles 
McFadden, a Philadelphia railroad magnate under whose ownership "Trevanion" 
became known for the training of horses.

In 1949, the property was in a delapidated state and was bought by Dr. 
Thomas Legg, who preserved it in its 1850's character. The home is now 
maintained by Dr. Legg's daughter, Mrs. Doris Crumpacker.

MAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES #9 continued 

(Secondary Sources continued)

New York; D. Appleton & Company, 1850.
Vaux, Calvert. Villas and Cottages. New York; Harper & Bros. 1864
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Description (continued)

The outbuildings of Trevanion that remain are part of the estate as it 
was developed by Dallas in the 1850's. The layout of the buildings 
follow the usual siting found in this region   a linear progression 
extending in one direction from the house. The outbuilding closest 
to the house is a common bond brick summer kitchen. It is a well-lit 
single room, square structure. A single doorway is on the east facade 
and window frames containing double four-over-four sash are on the 
north and west facades. The interior of the south wall has a broad 
cooking hearth and on the exterior is a brick beehive oven. The next 
building in line is the cooler, also with a square plan but smaller in 
scale. The cooler is divided into three sections. A small double 
storage shed is the third building. Currently one section is concrete 
block, but the wood framing indicates that an earlier cladding may 
have been on this section. The last building in this progression is 
a farm building with a lower section that may have been the slave 
quarters. The upper section is of stone and has an open bay designat­ 
ing its use as an animal shelter. The brick section of this building 
is partitioned into three sections and has a large number of windows 
and doors for its size. The wood trim is plain with corner block 
lintels. Its plan, fenestration, and trim gives the structure an ap­ 
pearance different from a typical farmbuilding, and indicates its 
use in housing the slaves which Dallas was known to have. The most 
recent use of this section is as a chicken coop. The major farmbuild- 
ings and mill were located away from the main house and no longer 
exist.

The visual progression along this line of outbuildings is interesting 
in that the degree of their ornamentation is related directly to their 
proximity to the house. The closer the structure is to the Gothic ad­ 
dition, the more detailed its ornamentation is. The summer kitchen 
has an ornamental vergeboard of cut-out circular designs between in­ 
verted pear-shaped drops which become curvilinear projections at the 
corners. The vergeboard of the cooler is serpentine with cutouts 
following the downward slope of the curves, and long turned drops at the 
corners. The two buildings furthest from the house are much simpler 
with plain wood trim and cornices, thus corresponding with the buildings' 
use as well as its distance from the house.



; 3 15

UNION BRIDGE QUADRANGLE
MARYLAND 

7.5 MINUTE SERIES (TOPOGRAPHIC)
SW/4 TANEYTOWN 15' QUADRANGLE 

:Y TOWN 3 ,v/> I 760 000 FEET W
77°07'30'<

39°37'30"

; /X
•o^

15197?


